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Who Was William Marrion Branham?  
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William Marrion Branham was part of the 
Charismatic Movement in the United States 
during 1945 and lasting until his untimely death 
in 1965.  Though some have named him the 
'father' of this movement, it is evident that he 
rode the coat tails of some of the larger names in 
the movement such as A.A. Allen, F. F. Bosworth, 
Jack Coe, T. L. Osborne, and many 
others.  Branham's influence likely started with 
F. F. Bosworth, who had been greatly influenced 
by Alexander Dowie in Zion Illinois. Bosworth's 
healing ministry had been in full effect for 
several years. 

The Early Years 

Branham was so ashamed of the first twenty-five 
years of his life that he never gave accurate 
accounts in any of his recorded testimonies of his 
life story.  Born the son of a very young Charles 
and Ella Branham in a time when the law did not 
prevent immature children from marriage, 
Branham would be raised without solid moral 
foundation.  At an early age, Branham witnessed 
unspeakable abominations by married and 
unmarried men and women around his father's 
whiskey stills and inside the house.   
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These wild orgies would scar the mind of a 
young William Branham.  He would begin 
suffering hysteria, though only diagnosed by his 
family physician at the time.  These memories 
would take a toll on Branham, with severe 
depression and other mental conditions affecting 
him every seven years for the rest of his life. 

Prohibition Years  

Branham's family had moved to a town called 
New Albany, only a few miles from "Little Vegas" 
which would later become the city of the 
headquarters of the denomination started in his 
name.  In "Little Vegas," Branham admittedly 
would run horse races and boxing 
rings.  Jeffersonville, IN received the nickname of 
"Little Vegas" due to the abundance of gambling 
and quickie marriages and divorces.  Well-
known mafia members such as Al Capone and 
Dillinger would frequent the gambling attraction, 
where greyhound racing and casinos dwarfed 
the distillery business across the Ohio river in 
Louisville, KY that were very limited due to 
prohibition.  Elliot Ness is known to have visited 
Jeffersonville frequently in an attempt to track 
down federally known offenders. 
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After Prohibition  

When prohibition ended in 1933, much of the 
underground business that made big names in 
the mafia had been eliminated.  The population 
of residents and visitors in Jeffersonville began 
to quickly decline.  Unemployment had reached 
25% in the US, and Branham turned to religion 
to provide for his family.  In his brand-new 1933 
Ford, Branham would no longer be seen running 
gambling events.  Instead, the brand-new Ford 
would be seen outside of a small Baptist church 
that he had begun building.  

First Attempt At Evan gelism  

Branham produced a religious tract entitled "I 
Was Not Disobedient To The Heavenly 
Vision" which referred to a great healing revival 
that started in 1945.  In this religious tract, 
Branham describes a vision that he considered to 
be a commission by God to heal the sick.  Though 
the original commission would later change, the 
healings he described in the tract would be the 
cornerstone to his ministry.   

Second Attempt at Evangelism  

Branham would later meet Gordon Lindsay, who 
would give a young Branham tips and pointers 
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that would start his ministry in full 
force.  Purchasing a very expensive and 
technologically advanced tent, Branham would 
hold a revival at Vandalia, IL in June 1947.  A 
microphone and loudspeaker system would be 
setup to blast his revival message throughout the 
entire city, and Chicago Tribune reporters would 
be called to cover the event as a nattily dressed 
Branham hosted a well-funded revival. 

Branham and Lindsay would start the "Voice of 
Healing" magazine as marketing material for 
Branham's business, as well as a series of tracts 
that would be sold for additional profit such as 
"How To Keep Your Healing."  The new version 
of the commission included angels, whirlwinds 
in trees, and bushes on fire that did not burn, and 
the Associated Press would publish the first 
news article featuring William Branham.   

With Lindsay and the new marketing technique, 
Branham was immediately a success.  Word of 
his healing campaign spread almost as quickly as 
the faith healer Branham had met only a month 
before, Avak Hagopian the Armenian.  

Decline in the Following  

Large crowds followed William Branham during 
the first few years of his newly improved 
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marketing version of his commission.  Crowds 
peaked as Branham combined his ministry with 
other well-known faith healers, and sales of the 
Voice of Healing skyrocketed as almost fifty great 
faith healers took their ministry around the 
world.  By 1951, Branham and Lindsay were 
marketing religious tracts entitled "I Was Not 
Disobedient To The Heavenly Vision" for other 
great faith healers such as Paul Cain. 

This following would begin to decline and would 
never return to the worldwide following it had in 
1951.  Branham's techniques used for healing 
were not uncommon, and the large crowds 
became familiar with these "vibrations of the 
hand," "shortness of one leg," and "magically 
guessing the information written in prayer 
cards."  As the crowds declined, the money also 
declined, and eventually Lindsay left William 
Branham as his campaign manager. 

New Attractions  

Branham knew that if he were to continue 
revenues in his ministry, a new marketing 
technique would be necessary.  In 1955, 
Branham would reuse a story told by William 
Sowders to claim a voice from the heavens 
commissioned him in the Ohio River.  This new 
story had some effect, but was not 
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significant.  Branham also described having three 
visions in 1932 about women's role in politics, 
Communism, and the shape of cars.  This story 
seemed to be a hit, so Branham refined and 
polished the three visions of 1932.  It  was not 
until a year later, in 1956 that the new marketing 
scheme would bring in the crowds.  In April of 
1956, Branham started claiming to have had 
seven spiritual visions from God in 1933, 
prophesying seven world events that had 
already happened.  These included the three 
visions of 1932, but added a few others.  Not 
having the tools to research, Branham did not 
fully get accurate accounts of what happened in 
these events, but the people would not notice his 
mistakes as he continued to refine them over the 
years. 

Prophecy of Doom  

In 1960, Branham started including a year to one 
of the seven prophecies of 1933.  He added a 
prediction that the world would end in 1977, 
using the power of fear to hold the declining 
followers.  This teaching would resound through 
not only his following, but other evangelist 
ministries as well.  It was a common belief that 
when the Bible was published in all languages in 
1977, the Lord would return.  Songs were 
written about the date 7-7-77 and entire cities 
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were evacuated to prepare for the coming of 
Jesus Christ.  A very disturbed Jim Jones who got 
his start through William Branham's joint 
campaign at the Cadle Tabernacle in 
Indianapolis, IN would take his entire following 
to South America to their deaths only a year later 
in 1978. 

Untimely Demise  

While travelling with his wife and daughter, 
William Branham began fighting with his wife 
about revealing everything to the people.  The 
platform he had placed himself upon was not one 
that he could easily walk away from, and the only 
exit was to finally tell the truth to all.  During this 
argument, Branham struck a vehicle and was left 
dying in the hospital. 

The Legacy Continues 

"ÒÁÎÈÁÍȭÓ ÓÏÎ ËÎÅ× ÔÈÁÔ ÔÈÅ ÍÁÎÙ checks 
already written to "William Branham" could 
easily be cashed by William (Paul) Branham.  So, 
through "Billy Paul," the legacy continued.  
William  (Paul) Branham quickly established the 
"William Branham Evangelistic Association" in 
Tucson, AZ at an attorney's office.  In a joint 
effort to keep the money coming in, Willard 
Collins of the Branham Tabernacle in 
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Jeffersonville, Pearry Green of the Tucson 
Tabernacle, Eddie Byskal of the Cloverdale 
Bibleway in BC Canada, and others joined with 
William (Paul) Branham to keep William 
Marrion Branham's legacy alive and the revenue 
flowing into the organization.   

After they built the business back up to a level of 
income that exceeded William Marrion Branham 
himself, William (Paul) Branham's brother 
Joseph decided to become active in the 
organization.  Setting up a master organization 
called Voice of God Recordings and a non-
operational organization with the same name 
"William Branham Evangelistic Association" in 
Jeffersonville, IN, all revenues could easily 
channel from the smaller organizations and into 
the headquarter of the denomination. 

Various other sales and marketing techniques 
have been added, including an ecommerce 
section of the organizationȭÓ ×ÅÂÓÉÔÅ that sold 
children's books, toys, publications, and other 
media.  Since there are far more revenue-
producing businesses surrounding the William 
Branham ministry than can be accurately 
counted, it is unknown the total size and volume 
of production and sales.  It is estimated that the 
number of followers greatly exceeded two 
million people by 2012. 
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Was It An Angel? 
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At the age of thirty-seven, one night I was 
praying in my room, and when I'd raised up, I 
noticed there was a Light on the floor. And 
looking around to see where it come from, It 
was coming from above. The Pillar of Fire was 
hanging just above, and was throwing the 
Light on the floor. I heard someone walking. I 
looked; coming through the room, coming into 
this Light, came a man. In human figure He'd 
be about two hundred pounds of weight. He 
had dark hair to His shoulder, an olive 
complexion. He was bare-footed. 
53-0800 TWENTIETH CENTURY PROPHET 

 
%ÁÒÌÙ ÉÎ 7ÉÌÌÉÁÍ -ÁÒÒÉÏÎ "ÒÁÎÈÁÍȭÓ ÃÁÒÅÅÒȟ ÁÎÄ 
ÂÅÆÏÒÅ ÔÈÅ ÄÅÓÃÒÉÐÔÉÏÎ ÃÈÁÎÇÅÄ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ȰÁÎÇÅÌȱ 
from whom Branham claimed to have received 
ÈÉÓ ÃÏÍÍÉÓÓÉÏÎȟ "ÒÁÎÈÁÍ ÄÅÓÃÒÉÂÅÄ ÁÎ ȰÁÎÇÅÌȱ 
that looked like a middle-eastern man.  This 
ȰÁÎÇÅÌȱ ÈÁÄ ÌÏÎÇȟ ÆÌÏ×ÉÎÇ ÄÁÒË ÈÁÉÒȟ ÏÌÉÖÅ 
complexion, and weighed two hundred pounds. 
 
Until the description of the angel changed to 
other variations in hair color, facial features, and 
style, Branham continued with the same 
ÄÅÓÃÒÉÐÔÉÏÎ ÏÆ ÈÉÓ ȰÁÎÇÅÌȢȱ 
 
In the very first recorded sermon by William 
Branham in 1947, young Branham describes 
meeting Avak the Armenian. 
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And I have many thousand miles of flying 
ahead of me. I have... going up on the... plumb 
from Vancouver, work down the coast as far as 
California, coming back to Fresno where I'm to 
go tomorrow, to the Armenian people. They 
flew a boy, who prays for the sick, by the name 
of Avak. They brought him from Cairo over to 
pray for a man by the name of Arkelian. 

47-1102  THE.ANGEL.OF.GOD 

 
Avak Hagopian was a world-ÒÅÎÏ×Î ȰÄÉÖÉÎÅ 
ÈÅÁÌÅÒȱ ÆÒÏÍ !ÒÍÅÎÉÁȟ Á ÍÉÄÄÌÅ-eastern country 
bordering Turkey and Iran.  His fame in the 
United States started quickly spreading to the 
point that he filled six thousand seats in the 
Shrine Auditorium in Los Angeles on September 
21, 1947.  He just happens to be from the same 
ÃÏÕÎÔÒÙ ÁÓ 'ÅÏÒÇÅ ,ÁÍÓÁȟ "ÒÁÎÈÁÍȭÓ ÁÃÃÌÁÉÍÅÄ 
ÔÒÁÎÓÌÁÔÏÒ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ȰÃÏÒÒÅÃÔȱ ÂÉÂÌÅȢ 
 
Avak entered the United States in April, 1947, 
Ô×Ï ÍÏÎÔÈÓ ÐÒÉÏÒ ÔÏ 7ÉÌÌÉÁÍ "ÒÁÎÈÁÍȭÓ ÆÉÒÓÔ 
appearance to the newspapers in June, 1947.  By 
3ÅÐÔÅÍÂÅÒȟ !ÖÁËȭÓ ÆÁÍÅ ×ÁÓ ÑÕÉÃËÌÙ ÓÐÒÅÁÄÉÎÇȟ 
and the people of Los Angeles were eager to see 
this mysterious dark-haired and olive-skinned 
man who could heal the sick.  
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Using an interpreter to translate, Avak is said to 
have healed over a thousand people in the Shrine 
Auditorium alone. 

  

 
Many of you has heard of Avak. You know, they 
come over here that time. Well, we've been 
trying to meet each other for some time. We 
met a few days ago in Florida, and put our 
pictures together and said, "[blank spot in 
tape] American [blank spot in tape ] consults 
Divine healing."  
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Anyhow, fellow, why he--he--He was a man 
that had long beard, and long hair.  

48-0304  THE.ANGEL.OF.GOD  
 

 
 
Avak got his start in America through the 
funding of a very wealthy family in California, 
who had spent several thousands of dollars in an 
attempt to heal their son. 
 
Vaughn Arukellian, struggled with epilepsy since 
he was struck by a bus at the age of 9.  His father 
placed his faith in Avak the healer to heal his 
invalid son. 
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!ÖÁË ÂÅÇÁÎ ÈÉÓ ×ÏÒË ÁÔ 3ÔȢ 0ÁÕÌȭÓ !ÒÍÅÎÉÁÎ 
church in Fresno California.  His entourage 
included a very wealthy Tom Kardashian, who 
claimed to have been healed of diabetes during 
!ÖÁËȭÓ ÖÉÓÉÔ ÆÒÏÍ !ÒÍÅÎÉÁȢ 
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Before long, newspapers across the nation began 
ÄÕÂÂÉÎÇ !ÖÁË ×ÉÔÈ ÔÉÔÌÅÓ ÓÕÃÈ ÁÓ Ȱ!ÖÁË ÔÈÅ 
'ÒÅÁÔȟȱ ÄÒÁ×ÉÎÇ ÅÁÇÅÒ ÅÙÅÓ ÔÏ ÔÈÅÉÒ ÅÖÅÒÙ ÁÒÔÉÃÌÅ 
describing the wonders that the 20-year-old 
Armenian could perform. 
 
By September of 1947, nearly a million people 
ÈÁÄ ÔÒÉÅÄ ÔÏ ÒÅÁÃÈ Ȱ!ÖÁË ÔÈÅ 'ÒÅÁÔȱ ÆÏÒ ÔÈÅ 
healing of their bodies.  All who came in contact 
with Avak claimed to have been either healed or 
somewhat better off than before. 

 

 
 
"Ù *ÕÎÅȟ ÔÈÅ ÍÏÎÔÈ ÏÆ "ÒÁÎÈÁÍȭÓ ÆÉÒÓÔ ÈÅÁÌÉÎÇ 
campaign recognized by the press, Avak was a 
name mentioned in the barber shops and dinner 
tables across the nation.  Crowds had grown to a 
point where police direction was required to 
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ÅÎÓÕÒÅ ÓÁÆÅÔÙȟ ÁÎÄ ȰÂÅÌÉÅÖÅÒÓȱ ×ÅÒÅ ÔÒÁÍÐÌÅÄ ÁÓ 
ÔÈÅÙ ÔÒÉÅÄ ÔÏ ÇÁÉÎ ÅÎÔÒÁÎÃÅ ÔÏ ÓÅÅ ÔÈÅ ȰÍÉÇÈÔÙ 
ÍÁÎ ÏÆ 'ÏÄȢȱ 

 

 
 
Followers even tried to touch the hem of his 
robe, just as the followers of Christ did before 
the crucifixion of Jesus Christ. 
 

I thought, "That looks like the Lord Jesus." I 
thought, "I wonder if it is?" He was looking just 
exactly, directly towards where our house sets 
now. So I moved around this way to see if I 
could see Him. And I could see the side of His 
face like that. But He... I had to turn way 
around this way to see Him. And I said, "Uhm!" 
Never moved Him.  And I thought, "I believe I'll 
call Him."   
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And I said, "Jesus." And when He did, He looked 
around like that. That was all I remember, He 
just reached out His arms. 
There's not an artist in the world could paint 
His picture, the characters of His face. The best 
I've ever seen is that Hofmann's Head of Christ 
at Thirty-Three, I've got it on all literature and 
everything I use. That's because that looks just 
like it, and so then... or pretty near, as close as 
it could be. 
55-0117  HOW THE ANGEL CAME TO ME AND 
HIS COMMISSION 

 
 

  

 
Sadly, the epileptic son of the rich man who 
brought Avak to the United States was quickly 
left behind.  Though he was told his healing 
would come within only a couple weeks, he 
remained unchanged. 
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Avak was eventually deported due to his attempt 
to stay in the United States permanently on a 
visa that did not permit it. 
 

A little over two years ago now, I was sitting in 
the room. I was reading my little Scofield Bible, 
and I heard something. First, I saw a Light. And 
I thought it was an automobile that turned the 
corner. But it turned, but it got brighter. And I 
looked out the door and there was no 
automobile. Then I heard something coming 
like this, going... [Brother Branham knocks on 
the podium four times.--Ed.] walking. And I 
looked, and the Light got greater. And just 
above me hung a great Star. And the Light was 
kind of a, more of a green, between green and 
yellow, shining on the floor. And coming 
walking through this Light, came a Man that 
looked like, as I said before, would weigh two 
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hundred pounds, a huge Man. He did not have 
beard over His face, like Christ's picture does. 
Who He is, I do not know. But He had... 
[Blank.spot.on.tape--Ed.]... shoulder. He was 
more of an olive complexion; He had dark eyes. 
He walked as close to me as the microphone is 
there. 

47-1102  THE.ANGEL.OF.GOD 
 
 
And It came into the room and walked to me 
that time, a Man, somewhat six foot tall, but of 
an olivelooking complexion, dark hair to His 
shoulders, weighing about two hundred 
pounds in human weight, and told me that I 
was brought to this world to pray for sick 
people. If I'd get them to believe and be sincere 
when I prayed, that nothing would stand 
before the prayer. 

51-0505  MY.COMMISSION  

 
 
And He looked at me, He's tall, big Man, about 
two hundred pounds, got dark hair to His 
shoulders, kind of a olive complexion, always 
carries His arms folded, comes from the right, 
always coming to me. He's come since I was a 
little bitty baby. I was just a few minutes old 
when He made His first appearance in a little 
log cabin in Kentucky. 

51-0929  OUR.HOPE.IS.IN.GOD 
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Let us read both the King James version 
and the translation by Dr. Lamsa. To our 
gratification we find the words in both 
amazingly the same so that there is no 
difference actually in content or doctrine. 

Branham: Church Age Book 
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George J. Lacy: FBI 

 
 

George J. Lacy and Lucile P. Lacy 
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Possibly the most famous aspect of William 
-ÁÒÒÉÏÎ "ÒÁÎÈÁÍȭÓ ÍÉÎÉÓÔÒÙ ÉÓ ÔÈÅ ÐÈÏÔÏÇÒÁÐÈ 
taken by George J. Lacy, who Branham claimed to 
be head of the FBI fingerprints and documents 
division. 
 
Not only was this photograph copyrighted to be 
sold to followers around the world, it has been 
blown up to portrait -sized images that hang at 
the center of most Branham churches around the 
world.  Some followers carry the photographs of 
the halo in their wallets, most have them on their 
walls in their homes, and even on their desks at 
work. 
 

George Lacy was the fifth president of the 
American Society of Questioned Document 
Examiners and the last of the 15 men who 
established the organization to be elected to 
that office. 
 
Mr. Lacy's first meeting was the 1942 
inaugural meeting of the society.  Two years 
later he married Lucile Peters Lacy who would 
later become the tenth president of the ASQDE. 
 
During Mr. Lacy's early work in law 
enforcement he arrested Charles Ponzi, the 
namesake of the Ponzi Scheme.  He began his 
career in forensic science as a general 
criminalist and ballistics expert.  As a ballistics 
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expert, he worked on the Bonnie and Clyde 
case.  He later specialized in questioned 
document examination.  He was responsible for 
establishing the Houston Police Crime 
Laboratory.  Mr. Lacy maintained a private 
practice in Houston, Texas for many years. 
 
George Lacy was the author of number of 
articles and professional papers, such as 
"Handwriting and Forgery Under Hypnosis," 
published in the Journal of Criminal Law and 
Criminology and "Magnification versus 
Enlargement," published in the Canadian 
Society of Forensic Science Journal.  Mr. Lacy 
passed away in 1962. 
 
http://www.asqde.org/about/presidents/lacy_
g.html 

 
The first time Rev. Branham tells the story, it is 
not so embellished, however he claims it is sent 
to Washington, DC to the FBI.  A claim that we 
later find is false. 
 

And so It's come many times. And so... And that 
night when they taken the picture of It... Lot of 
times they said it was psychology. But the man 
who taken it was an Orthodox Jew, name is Ted 
Kipperman. Mister Ayers was a Roman 
Catholic. Been standing there making fun. Put 
a piece in the paper the day before that, just 
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before, and said I was a hypnotizer, and made 
all kinds of remarks, insulting about it. 
He almost had a heart attack. And he try--tried 
to get into the Rice Hotel. And of course, they 
wouldn't let him in where I was at. 
The next morning, they flew the picture away 
to Washington, DC for a copyright. Before it 
could be released, it had to go before the FBI 
examinations. And when they did, they went 
and got the best, George J. Lacy, the best there 
is in the United States. He kept it for two or 
three days, and to see if there was any touch-
up, or anything was wrong, that picture 
would... 
 
When he brought it out, he said, "Well, it was 
perfectly right, that the Light was there that 
struck it," and gave a great write-up, each one 
that had to go with each picture like that. And 
there it is, visible. 
And they asked me if I wanted to sell it. I said, 
"No, sir. If Jesus Christ, the Son of God, thought 
enough of me to stand by my side to have His 
picture taken, I think enough of Him not to sell 
it." See? And so I said... I never... And so I turned 
it over to the studios, and let them do what 
they wished with them. And they said they'd 
have to get something out of it. I had them to 
say that they would sell it so that every poor 
person could--could get a hold of it if they 
wanted it. And I... 

50-0714  AT.THY.WORD 
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According to Gordon Lindsay, the evaluation by 
Mr. Lacy cost them a considerable sum of money.  
He acknowledged that Mr. Lacy was just an 
examiner, not FBI.  The photograph was sent to 
Houston, TX, not Washington DC.  Lindsay, 
affiliated with th e Branham campaign supplied 
the money on behalf of the Branham campaign, 
and Rev. Branham later describes his 
involvement with the submission of the 
photograph. 
 

  [Brother Lindsay announces the prayer cards 
to be called and then explains the picture, the 
text of which follows: 
While the prayer line is forming, I want to 
show you this picture that we happened to get 
a hold of just now, one that Brother Branham 
was talking about, which shows the 
supernatural Light over his head. As soon as 
that picture was taken, I made arrangements 
to have the negative taken to the Examiner of 
Questioned Documents, Mr. George Lacy, of 
Houston, Texas. And I asked him; I said, "You 
have all means of science at your command, 
can you tell me if there's any fake about that 
particular negative? Can you tell if there's a 
superimposure? Can you tell if there's been a 
double exposure? Can you tell if the film has 
been "doctored with," in any way?" 
He says, "Absolutely, I can." So he took it--cost 
us a considerable sum because he was a 
scientist engaged in that work-- and examined 
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it many hours in his laboratory. And then, with 
his own name signed underneath it, he 
declared that the negative was absolutely, 
absolutely, positively genuine. 
May I just add this word: The picture was 
taken by a hostile photographer, one that had 
spoken against the meeting. Fact he... The 
statement even got in the newspaper, and he 
was as surprised as anyone. 

50-0714  AT.THY.WORD  

 
 
After Lindsay made his statement, and Rev. 
Branham saw the conflicting story, he changed it 
back to Houston, TX.  He changes it from the FBI 
ÔÏ ÔÈÅ Ȱ* %ÄÇÁÒ (ÏÏÖÅÒ /ÕÔÆÉÔȢȱ 
 

All right, you little lady, you come forward. 
Now, everyone be just reverent as you can. 
If I'm not loud enough, you tell me, 'cause when 
It comes down over me, the anointing, that... 
How many seen the picture? You seen the... All 
of you've seen the picture of It, haven't you? 
You mean there's people here that hasn't seen 
the picture of It? 
It's been taken and examined by a government 
examiner. It's at the table back there. Here, I 
believe it's... Here it is when It was caught in 
the picture. 
Now, that is tested by the G. Edgar Hoover 
outfit, of fingerprint and photography, and so 
forth, to be proven that it's perfect. The first 
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time in all the world's history that a 
supernatural Being was ever--was ever 
photographed. First time in all the world's... 
George J. Lacy at--at the Shell Building in 
Houston, Texas, was the one who had to 
examine it for two days. If you notice, see how 
It's licking and blazing and burning? And 
they... George said, "Well, go before the world." 

50-0820E  BELIEVE.YE.THAT 
I.AM.ABLE.TO.DO.THIS 

 
He continues with the J. Edgar Hoover Outfit 
ÓÔÏÒÙȟ ÂÕÔ ÉÎÖÅÎÔÓ Á Ȱ2ÅÌÉÇÉÏÕÓ (ÁÌÌ ÏÆ !ÒÔȟȱ ×ÈÉÃÈ 
has never existed: 

 
Call George J. Lacy. You've heard of him. He's 
one of the Edgar Hoover outfits, one of the best 
there is in the United States. This hall then goes 
to the... This picture goes to the Religious Hall 
of Art. For the first time in all the world's 
history that a supernatural Being was ever 
photographed... 

50-0820E  BELIEVE.YE.THAT 
I.AM.ABLE.TO.DO.THIS 

 
 
He then ties it to the Houston, TX examination 
and the J. Edgar Hoover tie. 
 

Notice. And then when the man pulled out 
those six pictures of the minister that was 
debating that the Divine healing, and I was a 
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devil and so forth. Every one of them was solid 
black and blank. There's his name and address. 
Send to the American Photographers 
Association and find out. 
When he pulled out the one he snapped, there 
was the Angel of God's picture whirling around 
where I was at. The first time in all the world's 
history that a supernatural Being was ever 
photographed. 
It was rushed to Washington, DC, copyrighted, 
sent back and give to George J. Lacy, J. Edgar 
Hoover, examiner. They kept it two days at the 
Shell Building in Houston. 
And when he come over there, and they all set 
out there together to find out what it was all 
about, he said, "Whose name is Branham?" 
I said, "Mine, sir." 
He said, "Stand up." He looked, said, "Mr. 
Branham, you'll die like all mortals do. But as 
long as there's a Christian civilization, your 
picture will never die." He said, "Because it's 
the first time in all the world's history that a 
supernatural Being was ever photographed." 
He said, "The old hypocrite has always said, 
"They... Scientifically, you can't prove there is a 
God." But said, "That has to be changed now, 
for here's scientifically... The Angel of God was 
there, and the Light struck the negative." There 
it was. There he signed... wrote out a big 
document, signed his name to it. There it is 
right back there. You can look at it yourself. 
There's the Angel of the Lord. 

51-0502  THE.ANGEL.OF.THE.LORD 
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The story started changing.  It was now sent to 
Washington, DC. 
 

But I have seen times where whole audiences of 
thousands, ten thousand at one time seen Him 
coming right down at two o'clock in the 
afternoon and standing over where I was at, 
when the newspapers flashed it everywhere. 
And right there in Houston when my critic's 
standing there, making fun, this man and 
everything. And he had a man to come take his 
picture, and took six of his pictures. And so that 
he could ha... show the people what he looked 
like while he was holding the debate with my 
manager. My... 
At that same time, God came down. And when 
he taken my picture, all the other man's 
pictures was blank, every one of them. And 
here, when this was taken, here was the Angel 
of God standing there. 
They sent it into the laboratories in 
Washington, DC, and it was copyrighted, and 
went through the greatest tests that could be 
of the greatest... George J. Lacy, the greatest 
man on research there is in America. And he 
kept it for days, and brought it out. His report's 
on the record there. The first time in all the 
world's history that a supernatural Being was 
ever photographed, that it's there. 

51-0509  TESTIMONY 
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He continues the Washington, DC story, and 
raises Mr. Lacy up to a revered platform as the 
greatest there is.  Mr. Lacy may have been the 
greatest there is, but notice the story growing. 
 

Has anyone got that picture here near? 
Well, that picture of the Angel of the Lord... 
That they would just... Here's one right 
here. I would like for the audience who did 
never see it... Some of you with your 
picture, would you just hold it behind you 
so that ones behind you could see it. And 
it's... That is what's a doing the speaking 
now. 
Could I have it, sonny boy. There it is. [A 
brother explains to audience.--Ed.] 
I have nothing to do with this, friend. I'm a 
man like the rest of you are. Now, there it 
is. That's the One that--that the 
government... The best research in the 
United States has had this picture before it 
could be published out like this. And it's 
truth. There it is with the signed George J. 
Lacy behind it, from the--the best that 
there is in the research in--in America. 
Thank you. And give that back to the 
correct person. 

51-0509  TESTIMONY 
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(Å ÁÄÄÓ ÁÎ ȰÅØ-&")ȱ ÔÏ ÔÈÅ ÓÔÏÒÙȟ ÓÏ ÔÈÁÔ ÔÈÅÒÅ ÉÓ 
a tie with the Federal Bureau of Investigation. 

 
And then quickly, they referred to it, and went 
down there, and they sent it away at eleven 
o'clock that night to Washington, DC, and 
copyrighted it. Then it was sent back to 
Houston. And it was given into the hands of 
George J. Lacy, the best examiner in the United 
States, ex-FBI. And he kept it, said, "Now..." a 
very hard-boiled. He kept it and said, "Now, 
wait a minute," said, "I will look 

51-0718  THE.ANGEL.OF.THE.LORD 

 
Then, he combines the work of the examination 
of the picture by Mr. Lacy with the FBI.  
Remember, Mr. Lacy was paid a large sum of 
money by the Branham campaign, and there was 
no FBI involved. 
 

Now, all right, bring the lady here. All right. 
Every one reverent. Now, if you'll notice, 
audience, the expression on the people's face as 
they begin to draw near the platform. See what 
it is? If you could only feel just what this is now. 
How many of you seen the picture of It, where 
they took it? Let's see your hands up like this. 
Where George J. Lacy, and the FBI, and all of 
them examined it. It's near us right here now. 
That's what's the matter with the lady. She 
feels that. Now, there's something wrong with 
her. 
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51-0923  THE.PRINCIPLES 
OF.DIVINE.HEALING 

 
(ÅÒÅȭÓ ×ÈÅÒÅ ÔÈÅ ÓÔÏÒÙ ÉÓ ÆÕÌÌÙ ÃÏÍÂÉÎÅÄȢ  7-" 
throws the questioners off the trail by saying 
that Mr. Lacy was from California.  He says that 
Mr. Lacy was FBI.   
 

And Ayers said, "I don't know." Said, "It's got 
me beat." They went on in and started 
developing the pictures. Kipperman, the Jew 
went upstairs to go to bed. And when he did, 
his father lived over the studio, Ayers, was 
going to... The Catholic boy was going to try to 
develop the pictures. And when he got it, he put 
them all through, developed them, smoked a 
cigarette, pulled one of them out, it was blank. 
The one he was going to take of Mr. Bosworth, 
when he was skinning him. It was blank. The 
one blank, the next one blank, and all six of 
them was blank. Not a one of them showed. 
God let him know Who was Boss. Then he 
pulled the next one out. And to his surprise, 
there was the Angel of the Lord, standing in a 
flaming fire over where I was standing. He 
grabbed his heart; he looked back. He dropped 
the negative; he screamed for Ted. He run...?... 
"Look at there; it struck the lens. It's the truth, 
Ted." 
Said, "Maybe I've been wrong." There that 
night, even yet at eleven o'clock that negative 
went to Washington, DC by plane, to be 
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copyrighted, brought back. And George J. Lacy, 
the best there is in United States, on research 
was brought from California to Houston, Texas, 
for to take the negative under consideration. 
He kept it for days. He looked through the 
lights; he looked at the camera. He took 
everything, and 'fore he could sign, because 
he's a FBI agent today, the best they got. 'Fore 
he could put his name to anything, he went 
down, and then at the day when it was going to 
call out, he said, when he come out in the room, 
he said...?... "Whose name is William 
Branham?" 

52-0713A  EARLY.SPIRITUAL.EXPERIENCES 
 

-ÒȢ ,ÁÃÙ ÇÒÏ×Ó ÉÎ ÔÈÅ ÓÔÏÒÙ ÔÏ ÔÈÅ Ȱ(ÅÁÄ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ &")Ȣȱ 
 

He grabbed his heart; he fell forward. He 
screamed for Ted. They run downstairs. That 
was about ten-thirty. And at eleven o'clock, it 
was on its road on an airplane to Washington, 
DC, to be copyrighted. Returned back, and 
when it did, it was turned over to the head, 
George J. Lacy, anybody knows he's head of the 
FBI, in fingerprint and so forth. And he 
happened to be in California, just down to 
Houston, they taken it into the Shell building 
under examination for two days. On the end of 
that time, he said, "Come forth, and stand in 
the room, and they would let them know what 
it was." 

52-0726  EXPERIENCES 
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He changes ÔÈÅ ÓÔÏÒÙ ÏÆ ÉÔȭÓ ÆÉÎÁÌ ÒÅÓÔÉÎÇ ÐÌÁÃÅ ÔÏ 
ÔÈÅ Ȱ(ÁÌÌ ÏÆ &ÁÍÅȱȢ 
 

Thirty thousand people, critics standing there, I 
said, "I don't claim to be a healer. You know I 
don't. I only speak of the truth. When I was 
born in a little Kentucky cabin up there, the 
Angel of the Lord come in the window and 
stood there. There was a Pillar of Fire." And I 
said, "God has proved that. And if I tell the 
truth, God will a-vindicate the truth. And if I'm 
a liar, God will have nothing to do with me." 
And about that time, she went "Whoosh," here 
He come. The American Photographer 
Association, all them there, "Look," "Life," 
"Times," "Collier," and all of them. The 
American Photographer Association shot the 
picture of It. Said, "I believe it's psychology. 
We've seen It before, but I believe..." And they 
took it home. And there the Light struck the 
lens. They took it to George J. Lacy. They put it 
under everything they could. And now it hangs 
in Washington, DC, in the hall of fame. 
Hallelujah. What is it? Jesus Christ with that 
bunch that they call holy-rollers. God bless your 
heart. 

53-0326  ISRAEL.AND.THE.CHURCH 
 

He evidently said something that was REALLY 
ÃÏÎÆÌÉÃÔÉÎÇȟ ÔÈÅ ÅÄÉÔÏÒÓ ɍÂÌÁÎË ÓÐÏÔ ÉÎ ÔÁÐÅɎȭÄ ÉÔ 
out. 
 



Copyright 2012, www.seekyethetruth.com  39 
 

Now, you're subject... You know that's 
something is going on. But now, That won't 
hurt you. See? Now, That's just the Holy 
Spirit coming near here. It's a... You seen 
the picture of It awhile ago, that Pillar of 
Fire. Did you ever see It? 
A lady here has got a book. Bring me that 
yellow book, will you, sister there? Wished I 
would've brought some of those pictures. 
How many ever--never did see It, let's see 
your hand, never even seen a picture of the 
Angel? Here It is. This is by the American 
Photographer Association, hangs in the 
religious hall of art in New York City, the 
only supernatural Being that was ever 
taken in all the world's history. You can see 
the Pillar of Fire. 
Here's George J. Lacy the head of the FBI. 
There's his signed signature that It was a 
supernatural Being there, when It was 
taken before thirty thousand people. And 
you see that, it said, "It looked like a 
yellow... [Blank.spot.on.tape--Ed.]...?... right 
in this here. 

53-0507  EXPECTATIONS 
 
Rev. Branham continues to bring up the story, 
getting a lot of mileage out of it.  In the middle of 
prayer lines, good-vs-evil stories, and more.  He 
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then starts claiming that George J. Lacy 
authenticated it as a supernatural photo. 
 

And went and looked at it. Put it in the--the 
acid and tested it. The man had a heart attack 
that tested the picture they took it to George J. 
Lacy, the head of the FBI. He examined it for 
four days and declared it to be a supernatural 
Being that struck the lens. See. Right at the 
time... 

53-0907A  LORD.SHOW.US.THE 
FATHER.AND.IT.SUFFICETH US 

 
Over time, the story of the actual report itself 
starÔÓ ÔÏ ÇÒÏ×Ȣ  )Ô ÂÅÃÏÍÅÓ ȰÃÏÐÙÒÉÇÈÔÅÄȱ ÁÓ ÔÈÅ 
ȰÏÎÌÙ ÓÕÐÅÒÎÁÔÕÒÁÌ ÂÅÉÎÇ ÔÈÁÔȭÓ ÅÖÅÒ ÂÅÅÎ 
ÓÃÉÅÎÔÉÆÉÃÁÌÌÙ ÐÒÏÖÅÎȢȱ 
 

But when he took it down, and pulled it out of 
the acid, and... He was up there to take Mr. 
Bosworth's picture. And when Mr. Best was 
holding debate with him, he'd hold it like this, 
and put his finger under Brother Bosworth's 
nose, and say, "Take it like this." He said, "I 
want them to hang up in my... I want to take 
that old man and skin him, and take his skin 
and tack it on my study door for a memorial to 
Divine healing." Could you imagine a brother 
talking about one like that? 
So he said... And that night when he put his 
finger under his nose, and he'd draw his fist up, 
and had the studio set that big camera out... 
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Oh, there was several cameras there and so to 
take the picture. Well, then, you know what 
happen? God wasn't willing that His servants 
should be taken with a picture like that, and 
every one of them was blank. Not a one of them 
showed up. 
But when they pulled this other one out, there 
was the picture of the Angel of the Lord on it. 
And they sent it to George J. Lacy, FBI 
fingerprint and document, he kept it in this 
place for several days, and then, it was 
copyright in Washington, DC as the only 
supernatural Being that's ever been 
scientifically proven. 

55-0608  ABRAHAM 

 
 
He continues telling the story, now changed from 
simply being tested for photograph 
enhancement to scientific proof. 
 

Think the picture here, not of me, I had nothing 
to do with it at all. It's Christ expressing 
Himself to His people. Then, if the--this being 
photographed here in Germany and different 
places, and before the great men... Even FBI 
examined the picture: GeorgeJ. Lacy. 
And if it was proven to be a supernatural 
Being, and it looks like the same Pillar of Fire, 
then it was Christ still with His church. "I'll 
never leave thee nor forsake thee." Then, "The 
works that I do shall you also." It'll do the same 
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kind of works He did if It's the Spirit of Christ. If 
it isn't the Spirit of Christ, it won't do those 
works. Upon this, let us say... 

58-0225  GOD'S.EYE 

 
4ÈÅÎȟ ÔÈÅ ÃÏÐÙÒÉÇÈÔ ÉÓ ÃÈÁÎÇÅÄ ÔÏ ȰÃÏÐÙÒÉÇÈÔȱ ÉÔ 
as scientific evidence that a supernatural being 
was photographed. 

Now, if you notice, this is not just a picture that 
we want to just save to make money on. We 
buy this picture and sell it same way we get it; 
about three or four cents on the picture for 
handling is all we get. It's a copyrighted affair 
and is in Washington, DC, as the only 
supernatural Being was ever proven to be 
photographed. 

58-0508  THE.EXPECTATIONS 
 
4ÈÅ ȰÏÒÇÁÎÉÚÁÔÉÏÎȱ ÁÄÄÓ ÑÕÏÔÁÔÉÏÎÓ ÔÏ ÔÈÅ 
ȰÃÏÐÙÒÉÇÈÔȟȱ ÇÉÖÉÎÇ ÔÈÅ ÉÍÐÒÅÓÓÉÏÎ ÔÈÁÔ ÔÈÅ 
ȰÃÏÐÙÒÉÇÈÔȱ ÄÅÃÌÁÒÅÓ ÉÔ ÔÏ ÂÅ ÓÃÉÅÎÔÉÆÉÃ ÐÒÏÏÆȢ 
 

Well, when we got through with the Church 
Ages, down there in the tabernacle, about this 
many people. There is people sitting right here 
now was present. That same Pillar of Fire come 
right over by the side of the wall, and drawed 
out those Church Ages the way I had them on 
the blackboard. Is that right? Many of you was 
there. [Congregation says, "Amen."--Ed.] And 
the people fainting, and everything else. I said, 
"There It is now, if there's a question." 
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They got the picture of It, here in Washington 
D.C., copyrighted as "the only supernatural 
Being was ever photographed." George J. Lacy, 
the head of the FBI fingerprint and document, 
examined It, when that Light was there. And he 
said, "Brother, Mr. Branham, I said it was 
psychology. I've attended your meetings; but 
the mechanical eye of this camera won't catch 
psychology, see." Said, "The Light struck the 
lens." 

63-1117  ONCE.MORE 
 
,ÅÔȭÓ ÒÅÖÉÅ× -ÒȢ ,ÁÃÙȭÓ ÁÃÔÕÁÌ ÒÅÐÏÒÔȟ ×ÈÉÃÈ 
ÃÏÎÔÁÉÎÓ -ÒȢ ,ÁÃÙȭÓ ÁÃÔÕÁÌ ÏÐÉÎÉÏÎȢ
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Report and Opinion – Jan 19, 1950 
 

 
 
George J. Lacy Examiner of Questioned Documents |||| Building 
Houston, Texas  
 
January 29, 1950 
 
R E P O R T   A N D   O P I N I O N  
 
Re: Questioned Negative 
 
On January 28, 1950 at the request of Reverand Gordon Lindsay, who 
was representing Reverand William Branham of Jeffersonville, 
Indiana, I received from the Douglas Studios of 1610 Rusk Avenue in 
this city, a 4x5 inch exposed and developed photographic film. This 
film was purported to have been made by the Douglas Studios of 
Reverand William Branham at the Sam Houston Coliseum in this city. 
during his visit here the latter part of Jan uary. 1950. 
 
R E Q U E S T  
 
Reverand Lindsay requested that I make a scientific examination of 
the aforesaid negative. He requested that I determine, if possible, 
whether or not in my opinion the negative had been re-touched or 
"doctored" in any way, subsequent to the developing of the film, that 
would cause a streak of light to appear in the position of a halo above 
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the head of Reverand Branham. 
 
E X A M I N A T I O N 
 
A macroscopic and microscopic examination and study was made of 
the entire surface of both sides of the film, which was Eastman Kodak 
Safety film. Both sides of the dim were examined under filtered ultra-
violet light and infra-red photographs were made of the film.  
 
Report and Opinion - Page 2 - January 29, 1950 
 
The microscopic examination failed to reveal retouch ing of the film 
at any place whatsoever by any of the process es used in commercial 
retouching. Also, the microscopic examination tailed to reveal any 
disturbance of the emulsion in or around the light streak in question. 
 
The ultra-violet light examination tailed to reveal any foreign matter, 
or the result of any chemical reaction on either side of the negative, 
which might have caused the light streak, subsequent to the 
processing of the negative. 
 
The infra-red photograph also failed to disclose any thing that would 
indicate that any retouching had been done to the film. 
 
The examination also tailed to reveal anything that would indicate 
that the negative in question was a composite negative or a double 
exposed negative. 
 
There was nothing found which would indicate that the light streak 
in question had been made during the process ot development. 
Neither was there anything found which would indicate that it was 
not developed In a regular and recognized procedure. There was 
nothing found in the comparative densi ties ot the highlights that was 
not in harmony. 
 
O P I N I O N  
 
Based upon the above described examination and study I am of the 
definite opinion that the negative submitted (or examination, was not 
retouched nor was it a composite or double exposed negative. 
 
Further, I am of the definite opinion that the light streak appearing 
above the head in a halo position was caused by light striking the 



Copyright 2012, www.seekyethetruth.com  46 
 

negative.  
 
Respectfully submitted 
 
George J. Lacy  
 
GJL/U 
 
MEMBER AMERICAN SOCIETY OF QUESTIONED DOCUMENT 
EXAMINERS 
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James Edward McDonald: UFO Expert 
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Arguably the second-most important event in the 
history of William Marrion Branham is the 
Ȱ3ÐÉÒÉÔÕÁÌ #ÌÏÕÄȱ ÔÈÁÔ "ÒÁÎÈÁÍ ÃÌÁÉÍÓ ÔÏ ÈÁÖÅ 
been the passing of seven angels from this world 
to the next while he received his revelation from 
them. 
 
)Î Á ȰÓÌÉÇÈÔ-of-ÈÁÎÄȱ ÔÅÃÈÎÉÑÕÅȟ "ÒÁÎÈÁÍ 
transferred the focus from the fact that he was in 
Houston, TX at the time of the event to the 
ȰÅØÐÅÒÔȱ ÔÈÁÔ ÁÎÁÌÙÚÅÄ ÔÈÅ scientific aspects of 
the cloud. 
 
Since then, many have studied the evolution of 
the "vision of the blast" that transformed into the 
"experience of the cloud", and have read 
research that address WMB's being in Houston, 
TX when the cloud appeared, and have studied 
information revolving around the many different 
inconsistencies and fabrications of "The 
Mysterious Cloud." 
 
What many have not researched or studied is the 
man who introduced William Branham to this 
cloud, James Edward McDonald. 
 
James Edward McDonald (May 7, 1920 ɀ June 13, 
1971) was senior physicist at the Institute for 
Atmospheric Physics and professor in the 
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Department of Meteorology, University of 
Arizona, Tucson.  Though many MSG followers 
believe McDonald was spearheading an 
investigation of this "supernatural cloud" for the 
purposes of the US Government's investigation 
to the unexplained, they would be surprised to 
learn that this is far from the truth. 
 
James McDonald did not earn his fame from his 
work with the US government and did not work 
for the FBI as some have claimed.  Mr. McDonald 
was a UFO chaser. 
 
Long before his investigation of the 1963 cloud, 
McDonald had became well known for 
investigating unexplained phenomenon in the 
sky.  Everything from unexplained fireballs to 
lights making high-speed ninety-degree turns 
were studied and documented by McDonald in 
preparation for his moment of fame which will 
be mentioned later in this study. 
 
On February 28, 1963, McDonald thought that he 
had his ultimate vindication of his beliefs in 
visitors from another planet.  A horseshoe 
shaped formation in the skies looked to be the 
entry point for an alien spacecraft, and it was 
beyond explanation. 
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After the publication of the article in Science 
magazine, letters to the editor started pouring in 
from fellow UFO chasers as well as conspiracy 
theorists with hypothesis regarding the US 
government's new aircraft.  Many thought it was 
an enhancement to the X-11, but McDonald did 
not accept this theory.  According to McDonald, 
his analysis of the formation did not match his 
data collected about the X-11 aircraft.  McDonald 
had something else in mind. 
 
McDonald was planning on gathering enough 
evidence that extra-terrestrial life did exist, and 
that we were not alone on this planet.  Several 
unexplained occurrences were studied and 
documented by McDonald with the help of 
others, and McDonald planned to confront the US 
government with his research. 
 
McDonald tried every way possible to prove that 
this "supernatural cloud" was completely 
unexplained, but unfortunately he could not 
discount all of the evidence.  There were simply 
too many possibilities from aircraft trails and 
rocket detonations to nuclear blasts.  He released 
more than one study on the cloud formation as 
an ongoing study, but in the end abandoned the 
research since a T.H.O.R. missile was the most 
likely possibility of its origination. 
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What many MSG followers today fail to realize is 
that Mr. McDonald was NOT trying to find the 
cause of the formation so much as he was trying 
to prove that it was unexplainable.  After 
exhausting every angle of his research, 
McDonald went on to bigger and better things.  
He actually did not prove that the cloud was 
unexplainable, Mr. McDonald claimed just the 
opposite by abandoning his research. 
 
In 1968, McDonald had gathered enough 
evidence that there were unexplained 
phenomenon in the skies that he presented his 
case to Congress.  What initially started as an 
objection to the Government's plans to develop a 
supersonic transport (SST) plane quickly became 
a debate on UFOs.  McDonald tried to present 
evidence that the SST planes would harm the 
ozone layer, but Congressman Silvio Conte of 
Massachusetts turned the argument directly 
against McDonald himself. 
 
Congressman Conte had knowledge of 
McDonald's UFO studies, and switched the 
discussion to McDonald's instable mental 
capacities.  Conte bluntly stated that anyone who 
"believes in little green men" was, in his opinion, 
not a credible witness.  
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McDonald defended his UFO research.  McDonald 
appeared before a committee of the United 
States Congress to present a 53-page assessment 
on his UFO research, which he thought would 
prove his stance and vindicate him as the "UFO 
Expert."  Unfortunately, he suffered severe public 
humiliation.  Members of the committee openly 
mocked McDonald and discredited him as any 
form of credible witness. 
 
McDonald's research can be found online at 
http://www.ufoevidence.org/Newsite/Files/Ma
cDonaldSubmissionUFOSymposium.pdf.  What is 
interesting to note is that there is NO MENTION 
of the "supernatural cloud" since McDonald had 
discredited the idea as unexplainable.  According 
to other researchers, his peers claim that his 
particular cloud was generally believed to be a 
result of the T.H.O.R. detonation, and there was 
no solid reason to believe otherwise. 
 
After this event, Mr. McDonald suffered mental 
anxiety that led into mental instability.  He was 
becoming professionally isolated by his peers 
that did not consider McDonald to be credible, 
and was not well liked by his acquaintances.  
Some studies described him as sometimes 
forceful and impatient, while others, less 
charitably, called him blunt and abrasive. 
 

http://www.ufoevidence.org/Newsite/Files/MacDonaldSubmissionUFOSymposium.pdf
http://www.ufoevidence.org/Newsite/Files/MacDonaldSubmissionUFOSymposium.pdf
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In April 1971 he attempted suicide by shooting 
himself in the head. He survived the attempt, but 
was blinded and was crippled into a wheelchair.  
McDonald was committed to the psychiatric 
ward of a Tucson, Arizona hospital. He recovered 
a degree of peripheral vision, and made plans to 
return to his teaching position, but on June 13, 
1971 ultimately took his own life. 
 
His body was found close to a creek next to the 
bridge spanning the Canada Del Oro Wash near 
Tucson. A .38 caliber revolver was found close to 
him, as well as a suicide note. 
 
In his lifetime, McDonald interviewed over 500 
UFO witnesses, uncovered many important 
government UFO documents, and gave key 
presentations of UFO evidence.  McDonald also 
gave a famous speech called "Science in Default" 
to the American Association for the 
Advancement of Science (AAAS)  that was a 
summary of the current UFO evidence and a 
critique of the 1969 Condon Report UFO study. 
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John Collins is the author and Webmaster of 
www.seekyethetruth.com. 

!ÌÍÏÓÔ σφ ÙÅÁÒÓ ÉÎ ȰÔÈÅ -ÅÓÓÁÇÅȱȟ ÔÈÅ ÎÁÍÅ ÏÆ 
the group of people (cult) following the 
teachings of William Marrion Branham, John has 
dedicated his life towards helping those who are 
still in this cult, and to those who are no longer 
bound but serving Jesus Christ with many 
questions. His goal is to remind both groups that 
we serve a living God who does not look to any 
organization, doctrine, mystery, or gift of the 
Spirit; we serve a God who looks at the heart. 

His main purpose is to point others back to the 
Bible, which is the Absolute.  All words of men 
may fail, but the Word of God will never fail.  We 
should put our hearts and minds back on Jesus 
Christ, who died on the cross so that ALL could 
be saved by grace through faith. 

Seek Ye The Truth is dedicated to those who 
are following the Message, and to those who are 
no longer in the Message but serving Jesus 
Christ. Our goal is to remind both groups that we 
serve a living God who does not look to any 
organization, doctrine, mystery, or gift of the 
Spirit; we serve a God who looks at the heart. 
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Our purpose is to point others back to the Bible, 
which is the Absolute.  All words of men may fail, 
but the Word of God will never fail.  We should 
put our hearts and minds back on Jesus Christ, 
who died on the cross so that ALL could be saved 
by grace through faith. 
 
Seek Ye The Truth started as a central place for 
all Message believers to ask the questions openly 
and anonymously, many of which they had in 
their hearts and minds for many, many years and 
were afraid to ask.  The original goal was to go 
"hand in hand" with the local pastors in 
Jeffersonville, spreading the answers and 
vindicating the teachings of William Marrion 
Branham.   
 
After a conversation with the local pastor 
regarding those who had fallen into worship of 
William Branham and those who had fallen into 
worship of Branham's son, it was evident that it 
would not be a joint effort.  The conversation did 
not match the sermons preached by the same 
pastor, and could only lead to confusion. 
 
Research began for a book, which was to include 
all of the many things William Branham 
preached that were doctrinally and historically 
sound.  The goal was to show the people who 
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followed Branham that though he was a prophet 
of God, he was still a man.  He was not an object 
of worship, and the people had turned to idolatry 
in placing his every statement equal to the "Voice 
of God." 
 
This website first contained a very small list of 
discrepancies, and only for a few days.  Within 
only two days time, it was identified by someone 
within the Organization, and broadcast quickly 
to pastors across the nation.  One pastor felt it 
his duty to threaten using a family member as a 
mouthpiece, while another local pastor called to 
threaten directly. 
 
The local pastor was one of the key founders of 
the following of over two million people.  When 
he made his threats, one phrase stood out above 
every other word in the conversation:  "People 
have known about these problems for years.  
What does it hurt you to believe it anyway?" 
 
It appeared that the pastor was hiding 
something.  Something had been uncovered, 
something that was large enough to have the 
nation of followers in an uproar if discovered.  
Something that needed research. 
 
As research started to progress, more false 
teachings were found than truths.  More 
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prophecies had failed than had succeeded.  None 
could be proven.  Bible teachings came from 
Gnostic texts and other strange beliefs, and did 
not line up with the Word of God.  Scriptures 
were invented.  Local pastors had no answer. 
 
It is believed that other key figures in the 
following also hid these things from the people.  
Magazine articles uncovering the "cloud hoax" 
were discussed in private and hidden from the 
people with all traces of evidence removed.  
Failed prophecies about a bridge that was built 
long before Branham was alive were discussed in 
private and hidden from the people.  Works of 
Clarence Larkin were plagiarized, and 
proclaimed as "Divine Revelation" for teachings 
such as the Seven Seals and the Seven Church 
Ages.  False bibles were promoted as scriptural 
accuracy.  False prophets were promoted as 
"having the same anointing as Moses."  Other 
cults were spun off.  And people had "known 
about these things for years," expecting us to 
believe them! 
 
While some live normal lives walking "middle 
ground," many are starting to become very hurt 
and abused.  Many suffer depression.  Physical 
and sexual abuse, and self condemnation.   
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Before long, it was found.  There wasn't a single 
prophecy!  All prophecy was given after the 
event happened!  Most of them didn't happen at 
all!  Every prophecy changed over time!   
 
Because of the research that followed, the 
biggest scam in the history of mankind had been 
uncovered.  One that had gained over a hundred 
million dollars in assets for just one of the 
hundreds of organizations involved in the scam 
around the world. 
 
All the while, helpless and poor followers had no 
clue what was going on.  Life's savings were 
donated to Lincoln Navigators, a tour bus used 
for vacations, and more.  Money donated was 
untraceable, spread across the entire world in 
assets.  Money was grown in foreign exchange as 
additional profit.  The perfect breeding ground 
for the perfect money laundering scheme, with 
not a single church or organization that could be 
accused; people willingly gave their hard-earned 
pay! 
 
Over time, this site slowly transformed into a site 
of questions into a site dedicated to help those in 
need.  There are far more than two million 
followers of William Branham around the world, 
making it larger than some of the other cult 
followings, and there are almost no support 
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groups for those desperately seeking help.  
Please join us as we help others.   
 
As for me and my house, we will serve The Lord. 
 
God Bless You! 


